
 
 
 
 
 

1480 Harbour Drive 

Wilmington, NC 28401-7776 
 

 

Items marked with *** are actionable items that require a vote 

THIS IS THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE NINE MEMBER EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE; HOWEVER, MEMBER GOVERNMENTS ARE 
INVITED AND ENCOURAGED TO ATTEND. COPIES OF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS ARE AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST. 

For Further Information Call 910-395-4553 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 
Monday, May 13, 2019 • 11:00AM 

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order, Welcome, Invocation, Introductions & Pledge 

2. Approval Minutes 

a. January 14, 2019 (see attachment)*** 

b. March 28, 2019 (see attachment) *** 

3. Finance Committee Report 

a. Budget Adjustments through April 30, 2019 (see attachment)*** 

b. Financial Report (see attachment)*** 

c. Present Draft FY 19/20 Budget (see attachment) 

d. Approve 18-19 Audit Contract (see attachment) *** 

4. Director’s Reports 

a. Chris May, Executive Director 

b. Program Directors Reports 

5. Chairman’s Comments 

6. Executive Committee Members’ Comments 

7. Next Meeting: Monday, June 10, 2019 Budget FY 19/20 Public Hearing 11:00AM 

8. Adjournment*** 

1



Page Left Blank On Purpose 

2



 
1480 Harbour Drive 

Wilmington, NC 28401-7776 
 

 

Page 1 of 3 

Cape Fear Council of Governments 
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 

January 14, 2019 • 11:00AM 
MINUTES 

Members Present:        
Trent Burroughs George Brown, Jr. Charlie Rivenbark Jonathan Barfield, Jr. 
Jan Dawson  Mike Forte  Teresa Batts  Lamont Grate (via phone) 

Members Absent: 
Walt Eccard  

CFCOG Staff Present:     
Chris May Dawn Tucker  April Radford  Allen Serkin  Maegan Zielinski 
Jane Jones 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Call to Order, Welcome, Invocation, Introductions & Pledge:  
Mr. Trent Burroughs, Chairman called the meeting to order & welcomed everyone at 11:04AM. Mr. Chris 
May gave the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Mr. Chris May informed the committee that Ms. Jennifer Haynie from the Department of Environmental 

Quality Division of Water Infrastructure would not be able to attend the meeting due to a conflict. 

Approval of December 10, 2018 Minutes:  
There was no discussion. A motion was made by Mr. Mike Forte to approve the December 10, 2018 Minutes 

and seconded by Mr. George Brown, Jr. The motion carried unanimously. 

Finance Committee Report:  
Ms. Dawn Tucker presented the Final Audit Report ending FY18. Mr. George Brown asked if there were any 
significant changes from the report that was presented to the board in December. Ms. Dawn Tucker 
responded that there was no significant changes. A motion was made by Mr. George Brown, Jr. to approve 
the Final Audit Report ending FY18 and seconded by Mr. Charlie Rivenbark. The motion carried 
unanimously. 

Ms. Dawn Tucker informed the board there were no Budget Adjustments through December 31, 2018. 

Ms. Dawn Tucker presented the Finance Report. There was no discussion. A motion was made by Mr. 
George Brown, Jr. to approve the Finance Report and seconded by Ms. Jan Dawson. The motion carried 
unanimously.  

Director’s Reports:  
Mr. Chris May informed the board it was time to appoint the Slate of Officers. Positions that need to be filled 
are: Chair, Vice-Chair, Secretary/Treasurer, and Finance Chair. Currently, the positions are filled by the 
following:  

Chair, Mr. Trent Burroughs  
Vice-Chair, Mr. George Brown, Jr. 
Secretary/Treasurer, Mr. Charlie Rivenbark  
Finance Chair, Mr. Jonathan Barfield, Jr. 

After discussion a motion was made by Mr. George Brown, Jr. to nominate Mr. Trent Burroughs to remain 
as Chair and seconded by Mr. Mike Forte. The motion carried unanimously. 

Mr. Lamont Grate joined the meeting via conference call 11:16AM 

3



 
1480 Harbour Drive 

Wilmington, NC 28401-7776 
 

 

Page 2 of 3 

After discussion, a motion was made by Mr. Jonathan Barfield, Jr. to nominate Mr. George Brown, Jr. to 
remain as Vice-Chair and seconded by Ms. Jan Dawson. The motion carried unanimously. 

After discussion, a motion was made by Mr. Jonathan Barfield, Jr. to nominate Mr. Charlie Rivenbark to 
remain as Secretary/Treasurer and seconded by Mr. George Brown. The motion carried unanimously. 

After discussion, a motion was made by Mr. George Brown, Jr. to nominate Mr. Jonathan Barfield, Jr. to 
remain as Finance Chair and seconded by Mr. Charlie Rivenbark. The motion carried unanimously. 

Mr. Chris May thanked and informed the board that the above election will be presented to the full 

Committee at the Annual Meeting and Awards Banquet on Thursday, March 28, 2019 for final approval. 

Mr. Chris May informed the board of the “2019 Ethics Training” for newly/re-elected officials. The CFCOG 

will host the “Live 2019 Ethics Training Webinar” on Thursday, May 23, 2019 in the conference room from 

10:00AM – 12:00PM and lunch will be provided. Mr. George Brown, Jr. asked Ms. April Radford to send him 

the flyer and sign him up to attend the webinar. 

Mr. Chris May presented the board with a recommended process to hire a new Executive Director for the 

Cape Fear Council of Governments to replace him. Mr. Chris May’s last day will be August 1, 2019. Mr. Chris 

May offered to work with the board during this process. 

After discussion, a motion was made by Ms. Jan Dawson and seconded by Mr. Mike Forte to form a hiring 

committee for the replacement of the CFCOG Executive Director to consist of Mr. Trent Burroughs, Mr. 

George Brown, Jr., Mr. Charlie Rivenbark, and Mr. Jonathan Barfield, Jr. The motion carried unanimously.  

Mr. Charlie Rivenbark requested a copy of the job description for the CFCOG Executive Director position. 

Mr. Chris May said he will provide the description to the board via email. 

Ms. Jane Jones presented the Area Agency on Aging report. Ms. Jane Jones informed the board of a “Housing 

Coalition” meeting that will be taking place on Thursday, January 17, 2019 at 7:30AM in the Convention 

Center in New Hanover County. There were no questions. 

Mr. Allen Serkin presented the Local Government Services report. There were no questions. 

Ms. Maegan Zielinski presented the Continuum of Care report. Ms. Maegan Zielinski addressed questions 

from the board about the “Point In Time Count”.  

Chairman’s Comments:  

Mr. George Brown, Jr. brought up the subject of local governments being sued for prayer in meetings and 

the legal responsibility/insurance of boards. Mr. Chris May will check with the SOG on this issue and he will 

forward their opinion to the board members. 

Mr. Trent Burroughs suggested each board member check with their individual board about insurance 

protection against any lawsuits. Mr. Chris May asked Ms. Dawn Tucker to check the CFCOG’s coverage with 

its insurance policy. 

Mr. Chris May asked the board their opinion about a “program” for the Annual Meeting. Thoughts on door 

prizes, guest speakers, and a suggestion on what it will take to have more of their board members to attend 

the Annual Meeting and Awards Banquet. Mr. Trent Burroughs said he likes the idea of a guest speaker, but 

also suggested the meeting to end earlier. Mr. Charlie Rivenbark also suggested ending the meeting earlier 

than 9:00PM. If a guest speaker will not increase the length of time added to the meeting he is in favor of 

one. Mr. Charlie Rivenbark also suggested having less door prizes. Mr. Jonathan Barfiled, Jr. suggested the 

idea of guest speakers will only increase the length of the meeting and he would like to shorten the meeting 

4



 
1480 Harbour Drive 

Wilmington, NC 28401-7776 
 

 

Page 3 of 3 

if possible. The board suggested the meeting end no later than 8:30PM. The board suggested that special 

guest speakers be saved for regular board meetings. There was discussion on changing up the location to 

share between the Cross Point Center and the Brunswick County Senior Center. 

Executive Committee Members’ Comments:  
There were no comments from other board members.  

Next Meeting:  
Thursday, March 28, 2019 6:30PM Annual Meeting & Awards Banquet at the Scotts Hill Baptist Church 
Cross Point Center. 

Adjournment:  
Mr. Charlie Rivenbark motioned to adjourn the meeting and seconded by Mr. George Brown, Jr. The motion 
carried unanimously. The meeting ended at 12:00PM. 

 
Respectfully submitted,      
 
 
 
_________________________________________   ________________________________________ 
April D. Radford, Clerk to the Board   Trent Burroughs, Chairman 
 

5



Page Left Blank On Purpose 

6



 
1480 Harbour Drive 

Wilmington, NC 28401-7776 
 

 

Page 1 of 6 

Cape Fear Council of Governments 
ANNUAL MEETING & AWARDS BANQUET 

March 28 2019 • 7:00PM 
MINUTES 

Members Present:        
Trent Burroughs George Brown, Jr. Charlie Rivenbark Jan Dawson  Mike Forte 
Teresa Batts  Lamont Grate 

Members Absent: 
Walt Eccard  Jonathan Barfield, Jr. 

Liaisons Present: 
Sheila Grady  LeAnn Pierce  Danny Clewis, Sr. Jeff Winecoff  Jerry Dove 
Howard Braxton Nancy Hill  Mary Louise Knight Brenda Bozeman Garry Keaton 

Liaison Alternates Present: 
Allen Oliver  Beverly Mayhew Steve Barger  Eugene Neal, Jr.  
Sara Thompson 

Other Guest: 
See attached sheet 

CFCOG Staff Present:     
Chris May  April Radford  Ursula Harris  Allen Serkin  Jane Jones 
Janeen Padavich Ginny Brinson  Holly Pilson  Audrey Marshall Kandace Lego 
Holli Blackwelder Maegan Zielinski Ginger Brick  Lashauna Parker Jan Yokeley 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Call to Order, Welcome, Invocation, Introductions & Pledge:  
Mr. Trent Burroughs, Chairman welcomed everyone at 7:00PM.  

Mr. Chris May asked all to stand for the National Anthem and the presentation of Colors by the Heide Trask 
High School JROTC Color Guard. Mr. Chris May asked everyone to remain standing and led all in the Pledge 
of Allegiance. Mr. Chris May gave the invocation. 

Mr. George Brown, Jr. officially welcomed everyone to Pender County. 

Mr. Chris May invited the guests to eat. Mr. Chris May introduced the head table at 7:40PM. The head table 

included Mr. George Brown, Mrs. Janice May, Mr. Chris May, Mr. Trent Burroughs, Ms. Dawn Grants, and Mr. 

Charlie Rivenbark. Mr. Chris May introduced special guests; Adam Caldwell from the Office of Senator Thom 

Tillis, Billy Christ from the Office of Congressman David Rouzer, Senator Harper Peterson, Representative 

Frank Iler, and Janet Bradbury from the Office of Senator Richard Burr. Mr. Chris May acknowledged all 

counties and local governments. 

Mr. Trent Burroughs called the business meeting to order at 7:46PM. Mr. Chris May read the Resolution 

and Slate of Officers. Mr. Chris May turned the podium over to Mr. Trent Burroughs. Mr. Trent Burroughs 

asked for a motion to approve the Slate of Officers. There was a motion from the floor and a second motion 

from the floor. The motion carried unanimously.  

The Slate of Officers is as follows: 

7



 
1480 Harbour Drive 

Wilmington, NC 28401-7776 
 

 

Page 2 of 6 

 Chairman - Trent Burroughs, Chairman Columbus County 
 Vice-Chairman George Brown, Jr., Chairman Pender County 
 Secretary/Treasurer - Charlie Rivenbark, Councilman City of Wilmington 
 Finance Chairman - Jonathan Barfield, Jr., Chairman New Hanover County 
 Member - Mike Forte, Commissioner Pender County 
 Member - Jan Dawson, Commissioner Burgaw 
 Member - Lamont Grate, Mayor Pro-Tem Tabor City 
 Member - Walt Eccard, Mayor Shallotte 
 Member - Teresa Batts, Councilwoman Surf City 

Mr. Trent Burroughs announced that Mr. Chris May will be retiring August 1, 2019 and thanked him for his 

service to the Cape Fear Region. Mr. Trent Burroughs announced that Mr. Allen Serkin has accepted the 

position of Executive Director upon Mr. Chris May’s retirement. Mr. Trent Burroughs asked if there was any 

other business. Mayor Daniel Hilburn asked to present Mr. Chris May with a Proclamation from the Town 

of Lake Waccamaw and thanked him for his service. Mr. Trent Burroughs asked if there was any further 

business.  

Adjournment:  
Mr. Trent Burroughs asked for a motion to close the business portion. There was a motion from the floor 

and a second motion from the floor. The motion carried unanimously. The business meeting ended at 

8:00PM. 

Presentation of CFCOG Staff, Annual Report, Public Officials Directory, and Special Awards: 

Mr. Chris May introduced the CFCOG Staff by department and explained the duties of each department. Mr. 

Chris May asked CFCOG staff to retrieve all name tags from the guests for door prize drawings at the end of 

the meeting.  

Mr. Chris May presented the Annual Report and the first edition of the 2019 CFCOG Public Officials 

Directory. Mr. Chris May informed the guests of the 2019 Ethics Training for Local Elected Officials webinar 

that the CFCOG will be hosting on Wednesday, May 22, 2019 from 10:00AM - 12:00PM at a cost of $10 per 

person, which includes lunch. 

Mr. Chris May presented the following awards: 

 Area Agency on Aging Professional Excellence Award 2018 - Deeanna Hale-Holland, Director of 
Prevention Services, Coastal Horizons Center, Inc. 

 Area Agency on Aging “What You Do Makes a Difference” 2018 - Elizabeth “Betty” Grace 
 Area Agency on Aging “What You Do Makes a Difference” 2018 - Dorothy “Dot” Grime 
 Cape Fear Council of Governments Workforce Development Leadership Award 2018 - Jean 

Duncan, VP of Human Resources, Acme Smoked Fish Corporation 
 Cape Fear Council of Governments Tri-HIC Impact Award 2018 - Meg McBride, SOAR Caseworker, 

Coastal Disability Advocates 
 Cape Fear Council of Governments Tri-HIC Legacy Award 2018 - Gloria Garton, Executive Director, 

disAbility Resource Center 
 Cape Fear Council of Governments Tri-HIC Leadership Award 2018 - Joanne Cain, Homeless 

Services Director, Good Shepherd Center 
 Cape Fear Council of Governments Outstanding Local Government Manager 2018 - Chris Coudriet, 

County Manager, New Hanover County 
 Cape Fear Council of Governments Outstanding Local Government Clerk 2018 - Lisa Stites, Town 

Clerk, Town of Oak Island 

8



 
1480 Harbour Drive 

Wilmington, NC 28401-7776 
 

 

Page 3 of 6 

 Cape Fear Council of Governments Lynwood Norris Regional Champion 2018 - Trent Burroughs, 
County Commissioner, Columbus County 

 
Mr. Trent Burroughs presented Mr. Chris May with an award and certificate from the CFCOG Executive 

Committee and once again thanked Mr. Chris May for his dedicated service to the Cape Fear Region and 

wished him well in his retirement. 

Mr. Chris May announced door prize winners. 

Chairman’s Comments:  

Mr. Trent Burroughs thanked everyone for attending and wished them a safe trip home. Awards ceremony 

ended at 8:35PM. 

Next Meeting:  
Monday, May 13, 2019 11:00AM in the Large Conference Room at the Cape Fear Council of Governments. 

 
Respectfully submitted,      
 
 
 
________________________________________   ________________________________________ 
April D. Radford, Clerk to the Board   Trent Burroughs, Chairman 
  

9



 
1480 Harbour Drive 

Wilmington, NC 28401-7776 
 

 

Page 4 of 6 

Title First Name Last Name Organization 

Volunteer Sandy Andrews New Hanover County Community Advisory Committee 

Alternate Jimmy Basden STHL & Regional Aging Advisory Council 

Councilmember Athelston Bethel Town of Navassa 

Councilmember Charlie Blalock Town of Oak Island 

guest Jan Blalock Town of Oak Island 

Field Representative Janet Bradberry Office of Senator Richard Burr 

guest Pat Braxton Town of Topsail Beach 

Councilmember Claudia A. Bray Town of Sandyfield 

Mayor Cynthia "Cin" Brochure Town of Oak Island 

Alderman Daniel "Danny Boy" Brown Town of Bolton 

Mayor Pro-Tem Minnie A. Brown Town of Navassa 

Assistant County Manager Tim Burgess New Hanover County 

Councilmember Anthonio "Tony" Burgess Town of Navassa 

Town Clerk Christina Burke Town of Topsail Beach 

Homeless Services Director Joanne Cain Good Shepherd Center 

Field Representative Adam Caldwell Office of Senator Thom Tillis 

Councilmember Warren "Bob" Campbell, Jr. Town of Leland 

Commissioner Frank Carroll Town of Lake Waccamaw 

guest Susan Carroll City of Northwest 

Mayor Pro-Tem Charles "Chip" Carroll City of Northwest 

Field Representative Billy Christ Office of Congressman David Rouzer 

Councilmember Jimmy Clarida City of Whiteville 

Town Clerk/Finance Officer Cheryl Clewis Town of Brunswick 

Councilmember Timothy "Tim" Collier City of Whiteville 

  Cindy Colucci Interim Healthcare 

Nutritionist Ellen Connor New Hanover County Senior Resource Center 

Commissioner J. Martin "Marty" Cooke Brunswick County 

Councilmember Robert "Bob" Corriston Town of Leland 

County Manager Chris Coudriet New Hanover County 

Mayor Kenneth "Pete" Cowan Town of Burgaw 

guest Alyse Cranford City of Northwest 

City Manager Darren Currie City of Whiteville 

guest Shelly Currie City of Whiteville 

Commissioner Everlene Davis Town of Brunswick 

guest Sherri Dove City of Southport 

WD Board Member/VP of Human Resources Jean B. Duncan Workforce Development Board/Acme Smoked Fish Co. 

Medical Assistant Specialist Patsy Eason Department of Aging 

Volunteer Marianne Eisenhauer-Wall New Hanover County Community Advisory Committee 

guest Helen Farrow STHL & Regional Aging Advisory Council 

Finance Officer Connie Forand Town of Topsail Beach 

guest Leighann Fotre Brunswick County 

Mayor Pro-Tem William "Buddy" Fowler Town of Surf City 

Town Manager James Gantt Town of Burgaw 

Executive Director Gloria Garton disAbility Resource Center 

Councilmember JoDan Garza Town of Carolina Beach 

10



 
1480 Harbour Drive 

Wilmington, NC 28401-7776 
 

 

Page 5 of 6 

Vice-President of Programs & Services Yvette Gosline Brunswick Senior Resources, Inc. 

Legislature/Volunteer Elizabeth "Betty" Grace STHL/EAPN/RAAC 

Councilmember Azalie Graham Town of Sandyfield 

Executive Assistant to Mayor & Council Dawn Grants City of Wilmington 

Councilmember James Green, Jr. Town of Chadbourn 

Volunteer Dorothy "Dot" Grime EAPN/CAC 

Clerk to the Board June B. Hall Columbus County 

Mayor Billy W. Hammond Town of Fair Bluff 

Town Clerk Jacquelyn "Jackie" Hampton Town of Bolton 

Case Worker Valorie Hatten New Hanover County Senior Resource Center 

Commissioner Michael Herring Town of Calabash 

Admin. Support Specialist Brenda Hewlett Town of Belville 

Town Manager David Hollis Town of Leland 

guest Nancy Huffer EAPN/CAC 

Representative Frank Iler NC House of Representatives 17th District 

Delegate Howard Jacobs STHL 

Attorney Richard Klein Legal Aid of NC Inc. - Wilmington Office 

guest Debra Knox City of Northwest 

Mayor James A. Knox City of Northwest 

guest Carole LeBlanc Coastal AARP/EAPN 

Town Manager Al J. Leonard Town of Tabor City 

Town Manager Ashley Loftis Town of Surf City 

Clerk to the Board Melissa Long Pender County 

Commissioner David H. Long, Jr. Town of Belville 

Delegate Austin "Audie" Lowrimore STHL Delegate/EAPN 

Board Member Joyce Lowrimore Brunswick Senior Resources, Inc. 

Mayor Terry Mann City of Whiteville 

SOAR Caseworker Meg McBride Coastal Disability Advocates 

Village Manager Chris McCall Village of Bald Head Island 

guest Bunny McClure Cape Fear Council of Governments 

Retired A-J McClure Cape Fear Council of Governments 

Vice-Chairman Fred McCoy Pender County 

Commissioner Charles T. McDowell Columbus County 

Commissioner Jerome McMillian Columbus County 

City Clerk Jane McMinn City of Boiling Spring Lakes 

Mayor Douglas C. Medlin Town of Surf City 

Councilmember Jerry Lee Merrick Town of Navassa 

Councilmember Haywood Miller, Jr. City of Northwest 

Commissioner James Murphy, Jr. Town of Burgaw 

Mayor Pro-Tem Joseph "Jody" Nance, Jr. Town of Calabash 

Town Administrator Charles "Chuck" Nance, Jr. Town of Calabash 

Commissioner Jacqueline "Jackie" Newton Pender County 

guest Ray Noble Town of Lake Waccamaw 

Town Clerk Linda Noble Town of Lake Waccamaw 

Senator Harper Peterson NC State Senator 9th District 

County Attorney Amanda Prince Columbus County 

11



 
1480 Harbour Drive 

Wilmington, NC 28401-7776 
 

 

Page 6 of 6 

Chief Executive Officer Katrina Redmon Wilmington Housing Authority 

Admin. Manager/Town Clerk Sabrena Reinhardt Town of Leland 

Town Manager Michael Rose Town of Topsail Beach 

Vice-Chairman P. Edwin Russ Columbus County 

Alderwoman Lora Sharkey City of Southport 

Commissioner Steven "Steve" Smith Town of Topsail Beach 

Councilmember Justin Smith City of Whiteville 

Director Amber Smith New Hanover County Senior Resource Center 

guest Edna Smith Town of Topsail Beach 

Alderman Marc Spencer City of Southport 

guest Renee' Spencer City of Southport 

County Manager Mike Stephens Columbus County 

Commissioner Linda Stipe Town of Topsail Beach 

Assistant Manager/Town Clerk Lisa Stites Town of Oak Island 

guest Jeffrey "Jeff" Stites Town of Oak Island 

City Clerk Donna Strickland City of Northwest 

Town Clerk Sue Stuhr Town of Calabash 

Volunteer Jan Stump New Hanover County Community Advisory Committee 

guest Sarah Styers EAPN/CAC 

Councilmember Michael D. Troy City of Northwest 

guest Linda Troy City of Northwest 

Alderman Robert "Bob" Tucker City of Southport 

guest Betsy Tucker City of Southport 

Commissioner  Dee Turner Town of Atkinson 

Volunteer Carol A. Tutherow Community Advisory Committee 

guest Billy Wall New Hanover STHL 

  Jean Wall New Hanover STHL 

Chairman Frank Williams Brunswick County 

Town Administrator Athina Williams Town of Belville 

Mayor Pro-Tem Jacqueline Williams-Rowland Town of Brunswick 

Town Administrator Frank Wilson Town of Bolton 

guest Kathryn Winston Coastal Disability Advocates 

Commissioner Dana Witt City of Boiling Spring Lakes 

guest Anthony Witt City of Boiling Spring Lakes 

AARP Volunteer Wanda Wooten Coastal AARP/EAPN 

Commissioner  Rob Zapple New Hanover County 

 

12



13



Page Left Blank On Purpose 

14



15



Page Left Blank On Purpose 

16



17



Page Left Blank On Purpose 

18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



Page Left Blank On Purpose 

31



 

May 7, 2019 

Executive Committee 
Chris May, Executive Director 
Dawn Tucker, Finance Director 
Cape Fear Council of Governments 
1480 Harbour Dr. 
Wilmington, NC 28401 

Attention: Chairman 

The Objective and Scope of the Audit of the Financial Statements 
You have requested that we audit Cape Fear Council of Governments’ (the “Council”) governmental 
activities, each major fund and aggregate remaining fund information as of and for the year ending June 
30, 2019, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements. We are pleased to confirm our our 
understanding of this audit engagement by means of this letter.  This engagement is subject to our final 
engagement acceptance procedures.

Our audit will be conducted with the objective of our expressing an opinion on the financial statements. 

We will also perform the audit of Cape Fear Council of Governments as of June 30, 2019 so as to satisfy 
the audit requirements imposed by the Single Audit Act and Subpart F of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), and the State Single Audit Implementation Act. 

The Responsibilities of the Auditor 
We will conduct our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America (GAAS); Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States (GAS); the provisions of the Single Audit Act; Subpart F of Title 2 U.S. CFR Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards; and the U.S. 
Office of Management and Budget’s (OMB) Compliance Supplement and the State Single Audit 
Implementation Act. Those standards, the Uniform Guidance, supplements, and Act require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free 
from material misstatement. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well 
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, together with the inherent limitations of internal control, an 
unavoidable risk that some material misstatements may not be detected exists, even though the audit is 
properly planned and performed in accordance with GAAS. Also, an audit is not designed to detect errors 
or fraud that are immaterial to the financial statements. The determination of abuse is subjective; 
therefore, GAS does not expect us to provide reasonable assurance of detecting abuse. 

    3621 John Platt Drive 
Morehead City, NC 

28557 

T +1 252 726 0552 
F +1 252 726 2740 

www.rsmus.com 

32



Executive Committee 
Cape Fear Council of Governments 
May 7, 2019 
Page 2 

 
In making our risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Council’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control. However, we will communicate to you in writing concerning any significant deficiencies or material 
weaknesses in internal control relevant to the audit of the financial statements that we have identified 
during the audit. 
 
We will also communicate to the Executive Committee (a) any fraud involving senior management and 
fraud (whether caused by senior management or other employees) that causes a material misstatement 
of the financial statements that becomes known to us during the audit, and (b) any instances of 
noncompliance with laws and regulations that we become aware of during the audit (unless they are 
clearly inconsequential). 
 

The Council’s Finance Director, Dawn Tucker, will be responsible for providing a list of funds that you 

have determined are maintained by the Council and that are to be included as part of our audit.  Ms. 

Tucker will also be responsible for providing a list of the federal and state financial assistance programs 

that the Council participates in and that are to be included as part of the single audit. 
 

The Council has not identified any component units whose financial statements are to be included as part 

of or excluded from the Council’s basic financial statements. 
 
We are responsible for the compliance audit of major programs under the Uniform Guidance, including 
the determination of major programs, the consideration of internal control over compliance, and reporting 
responsibilities. 
 
Our report(s) on internal control will include any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in 
controls of which we become aware as a result of obtaining an understanding of internal control and 
performing tests of internal control consistent with requirements of the standards and regulations 
identified above. Our report(s) on compliance matters will address material errors, fraud, abuse, violations 
of compliance obligations, and other responsibilities imposed by state and federal statutes and 
regulations or assumed by contracts; and any state or federal grant, entitlement or loan program 
questioned costs of which we become aware, consistent with requirements of the standards and 
regulations identified above. 
 
The Responsibilities of Management and Identification of the Applicable Financial Reporting 
Framework 
Our audit will be conducted on the basis that management and, when appropriate, those charged with 
governance acknowledge and understand that they have responsibility:  
 
1. For the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting 

principles generally accepted in the United States of America; 
 
2. To evaluate subsequent events through the date the financial statements are issued or available to 

be issued, and to disclose the date through which subsequent events were evaluated in the financial 
statements. Management also agrees that it will not conclude on subsequent events earlier than the 
date of the management representation letter referred to below; 

 
3. For the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and 

fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error; 

 

33



Executive Committee 
Cape Fear Council of Governments 
May 7, 2019 
Page 3 

4. For establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for informing 
us of all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of such controls 
of which it has knowledge; 

 
5. For report distribution; and 
 
6. To provide us with: 
 

a. Access to all information of which management is aware that is relevant to the preparation and 
fair presentation of the financial statements such as records, documentation and other matters; 

 
b. Additional information that we may request from management for the purpose of the audit; and 

 
c. Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom we determine it necessary to obtain 

audit evidence; 
 

d. When applicable a summary of prior audit findings for inclusion in the single audit reporting 
package; and 

 
e. If applicable, responses to any findings reported on the schedule of findings and questioned costs 
 

As part of our audit process, we will request from management and, when appropriate, those charged 
with governance written confirmation concerning representations made to us in connection with the audit, 
including among other items:  
 
1. That management has fulfilled its responsibilities as set out in the terms of this letter; and 
 
2. That it believes the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us during the current 

engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both individually and in the 
aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

 
Management is responsible for identifying and ensuring that the Council complies with the laws and 
regulations applicable to its activities, and for informing us about all known material violations of such 
laws or regulations. In addition, management is responsible for the design and implementation of 
programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud or abuse, and for informing us about all known or 
suspected fraud or abuse affecting the entity involving management, employees who have significant 
roles in internal control, and others where the fraud or abuse could have a material effect on the financial 
statements or compliance. Management is also responsible for informing us of its knowledge of any 
allegations of fraud or abuse, or suspected fraud or abuse, affecting the entity received in 
communications from employees, former employees, analysts, regulators or others. 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation of the required supplementary information (RSI) and 
supplementary information presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. Management agrees to include the auditor’s report on the RSI and 
supplementary information in any document that contains the supplementary information and indicates 
that the auditor has reported on the RSI and supplementary information. Management also agrees to 
present the supplementary information with the audited financial statements or, if the supplementary 
information will not be presented with audited financial statements, to make the audited financial 
statements readily available to the intended users of the supplementary information no later than the date 
of issuance of the supplementary information and the auditor’s report thereon. 
 
Because the audit will be performed in accordance with the Single Audit Act and the Uniform Guidance, 
management is responsible for (a) identifying all federal awards received and expended; (b) preparing the 

34



Executive Committee 
Cape Fear Council of Governments 
May 7, 2019 
Page 4 

schedule of expenditures of federal awards (including notes and noncash assistance received) in 
accordance with Uniform Guidance requirements; (c) internal control over compliance; (d) compliance 
with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal awards; (e) making us aware of 
significant vendor relationships where the vendor is responsible for program compliance; (f) following up 
and taking corrective action on audit findings, including the preparation of a summary schedule of prior 
audit findings and a corrective action plan; and (g) submitting the reporting package and data collection 
form. 

The Executive Committee is responsible for informing us of its views about the risks of fraud or abuse 
within the entity, and its knowledge of any fraud or abuse or suspected fraud or abuse affecting the entity. 

Our association with an official statement is a matter for which separate arrangements will be necessary. 
Cape Fear Council of Governments agrees to provide us with printer’s proofs or masters of such offering 
documents for our review and approval before printing, and with a copy of the final reproduced material 
for our approval before it is distributed. In the event our auditor/client relationship has been terminated 
when Cape Fear Council of Governments seeks such consent, we will be under no obligation to grant 
such consent or approval. 

Cape Fear Council of Governments agrees that it will not associate us with any public or private securities 
offering without first obtaining our consent. Therefore, Cape Fear Council of Governments agrees to 
contact us before it includes our reports, or otherwise makes reference to us, in any public or private 
securities offering. 

Records and Assistance 
If circumstances arise relating to the condition of the Council’s records, the availability of appropriate audit 
evidence or indications of a significant risk of material misstatement of the financial statements because 
of error, fraudulent financial reporting or misappropriation of assets which, in our professional judgment, 
prevent us from completing the audit or forming an opinion, we retain the unilateral right to take any 
course of action permitted by professional standards, including declining to express an opinion or issue a 
report, or withdrawing from the engagement. 

During the course of our engagement, we may accumulate records containing data that should be 
reflected in the Council’s books and records. The Council will determine that all such data, if necessary, 
will be so reflected. Accordingly, the Council will not expect us to maintain copies of such records in our 
possession. 

The assistance to be supplied by Council personnel, including the preparation of schedules and analyses 
of accounts, has been discussed and coordinated with Dawn Tucker, Finance Director. The timely and 
accurate completion of this work is an essential condition to our completion of the audit and issuance of 
our audit report. 

In connection with our audit, you have requested us to perform certain non-audit services necessary for 
the preparation of the financial statements, including the preparation of the draft financial statements that 
are based on management’s chart of accounts and trial balance and any adjusting, correcting, and 
closing entries that has been approved by management and assisting in the preparation of draft notes to 
the financial statements based on information provided and approved by management. The GAS 
independence standards require that the auditor maintain independence so that opinions, findings, 
conclusions, judgments and recommendations will be impartial and viewed as impartial by reasonable 
and informed third parties. Before we agree to provide a non-audit service to Cape Fear Council of 
Governments, we determine whether providing such a service would create a significant threat to our 
independence for GAS audit purposes, either by itself or in aggregate with other non-audit services 
provided. A critical component of our determination is consideration of management’s ability to effectively 
oversee the non-audit services to be performed. Cape Fear Council of Governments has agreed that 

35



Executive Committee 
Cape Fear Council of Governments 
May 7, 2019 
Page 5 

Dawn Tucker, Finance Director possesses suitable skill, knowledge or experience and that the individual 
understands the drafting of the financial statements and notes services to be performed sufficiently to 
oversee them. Accordingly, the management of Cape Fear Council of Governments agrees to the 
following: 
 
1. Cape Fear Council of Governments has designated Dawn Tucker, Finance Director as a senior 

member of management who possesses suitable skill, knowledge and experience to oversee the 
services; 

 
2. Dawn Tucker, Finance Director will assume all management responsibilities for subject matter and 

scope of the drafting of the financial statements and notes; 
 
3. Cape Fear Council of Governments will evaluate the adequacy and results of the services performed; 

and 
 
4. Cape Fear Council of Governments accepts responsibility for the results and ultimate use of the 

services. 
 
GAS further requires that we establish an understanding with Cape Fear Council of Governments’ 
management and those charged with governance of the objectives of the non-audit services, the services 
to be performed, the entity’s acceptance of its responsibilities, the auditor’s responsibilities and any 
limitations of the non-audit services. We believe this letter documents that understanding. 
 
Other Relevant Information 
From time to time and depending upon the circumstances, we may use third-party service providers to 
assist us in providing professional services to you. In such circumstances, it may be necessary for us to 
disclose confidential client information to them. We enter into confidentiality agreements with all third-
party service providers and we are satisfied that they have appropriate procedures in place to prevent the 
unauthorized release of your confidential information to others. 
 
In accordance with GAS, a copy of our most recent peer review report is enclosed for your information.  
 
Fees, Costs, and Access to Workpapers 
Our fees for the services described above are based upon the value of the services performed and the 
time required by the individuals assigned to the engagement plus directly billed expenses, including 
reporting processing, travel, meals, and fees for services from other professionals, as well as a charge of 
5% of fees for all other expenses, including indirect administrative expenses such as technology, 
research and library databases, communications, photocopying, postage and clerical assistance. Our 
fees for the services described in this letter will not exceed $35,300. Our fee estimate and completion of 
our work are based upon the following criteria: 
 
1. Anticipated cooperation from Council personnel 
 
2. Timely responses to our inquiries 
 
3. Timely completion and delivery of client assistance requests 
 
4. Timely communication of all significant accounting and financial reporting matters 
 
5. The assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during the engagement 
 
If any of the aforementioned criteria are not met, then fees may increase. Interim billings will be submitted 
as work progresses and as expenses are incurred. Billings are due upon submission. 

36



Executive Committee 
Cape Fear Council of Governments 
May 7, 2019 
Page 6 

When an engagement has been suspended at the request of management or those charged with 
governance and work on that engagement has not recommenced within 120 days of the request to 
suspend our work, RSM US LLP may, at its sole discretion, terminate this arrangement letter without 
further obligation to Cape Fear Council of Governments. Resumption of audit work following termination 
may be subject to our client acceptance procedures and, if resumed, will necessitate additional 
procedures not contemplated in this arrangement letter. Accordingly, the scope, timing and fee 
arrangement discussed in this arrangement letter will no longer apply. In order for RSM US LLP to 
recommence work, a new arrangement letter would need to be mutually agreed upon and executed. 

Our professional standards require that we perform certain additional procedures, on current and 
previous years’ engagements, whenever a partner or professional employee leaves the firm and is 
subsequently employed by or associated with a client in a key position. Accordingly, the Council agrees it 
will compensate RSM US LLP for any additional costs incurred as a result of the Council’s employment of 
a partner or professional employee of RSM US LLP. 

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of RSM US LLP and constitutes confidential 
information.  

Review of audit documentation by a successor auditor or as part of due diligence will be agreed to, 
accounted for and billed separately. 

In the event we are requested or authorized by Cape Fear Council of Governments or are required by 
government regulation, subpoena or other legal process to produce our documents or our personnel as 
witnesses with respect to our engagement for Cape Fear Council of Governments, Cape Fear Council of 
Governments will, so long as we are not a party to the proceeding in which the information is sought, 
reimburse us for our professional time and expenses, as well as the fees and expenses of our counsel, 
incurred in responding to such requests. 

The documentation for this engagement is the property of RSM US LLP. However, you acknowledge and 
grant your assent that representatives of the cognizant or oversight agency or their designee, other 
government audit staffs, and the U.S. Government Accountability Office shall have access to the audit 
documentation upon their request and that we shall maintain the audit documentation for a period of at 
least three years after the date of the report, or for a longer period if we are requested to do so by the 
cognizant or oversight agency. Access to requested documentation will be provided under the supervision 
of RSM US LLP audit personnel and at a location designated by our firm.  

Claim Resolution 
Cape Fear Council of Governments and RSM US LLP agree that no claim arising out of services 
rendered pursuant to this arrangement letter shall be filed more than the earlier of two years after the date 
of the audit report issued by RSM US LLP or the date of this arrangement letter if no report has been 
issued. In no event shall either party be liable to the other for claims of punitive, consequential, special, or 
indirect damages. RSM US LLP’s liability for all claims, damages and costs of Cape Fear Council of 
Governments arising from this engagement is limited to the amount of fees paid by Cape Fear Council of 
Governments to RSM US LLP for the services rendered under this arrangement letter. 

Information Security - Miscellaneous Terms 
RSM US LLP is committed to the safe and confidential treatment of Cape Fear Council of Governments’ 
proprietary information. RSM US LLP is required to maintain the confidential treatment of client 
information in accordance with relevant industry professional standards which govern the provision of 
services described herein. Cape Fear Council of Governments agrees that it will not provide RSM US LLP 
with any unencrypted electronic confidential or proprietary information, and the parties agree to utilize 

37



Executive Committee 
Cape Fear Council of Governments 
May 7, 2019 
Page 7 

commercially reasonable measures to maintain the confidentiality of Cape Fear Council of Governments 
information, including the use of collaborate sites to ensure the safe transfer of data between the parties. 

RSM US LLP may terminate this relationship immediately in its sole discretion if RSM US LLP determines 
that continued performance would result in a violation of law, regulatory requirements, applicable 
professional standards or RSM US LLP’s client acceptance or retention standards, or if Cape Fear 
Council of Governments is placed on a verified sanctioned entity list or if any director or executive of, or 
other person closely associated with, Cape Fear Council of Governments or its affiliates is placed on a 
verified sanctioned person list, in each case, including but not limited to lists promulgated by the Office of 
Foreign Assets Control of the U.S. Department of the Treasury, the U.S. State Department, the United 
Nations Security Council, the European Union or any other relevant sanctioning authority. 

If any term or provision of this arrangement letter is determined to be invalid or unenforceable, such term 
or provision will be deemed stricken and all other terms and provisions will remain in full force and effect. 

Reporting 
We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of Cape Fear Council of Governments’ 
financial statements. Our report will be addressed to the executive committee of Cape Fear Council of 
Governments. We cannot provide assurance that an unmodified opinion will be expressed. 
Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify our opinion, add an emphasis-of-matter 
or other-matter paragraph(s), or withdraw from the engagement. 

In addition to our report on Cape Fear Council of Governments’ financial statements, we will also issue 
the following types of reports: 

1. A report on the fairness of the presentation of Cape Fear Council of Governments’ schedule of
expenditures of federal awards for the year ending June 30, 2019;

2. Reports on internal control related to the financial statements and major programs. These reports will
describe the scope of testing of internal control and the results of our tests of internal control;

3. Reports on compliance with laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts or grant agreements.
We will report on any noncompliance that could have a material effect on the financial statements and
any noncompliance that could have a material effect, as defined by Subpart F of Title 2 U.S. CFR
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards, on each major program;

4. An accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs; and

This letter constitutes the complete and exclusive statement of agreement between RSM US LLP and 
Cape Fear Council of Governments, superseding all proposals, oral or written, and all other 
communications with respect to the terms of the engagement between the parties. 

Electronic Signatures and Counterparts 
Each party hereto agrees that any electronic signature of a party to this agreement or any electronic 
signature to a document contemplated hereby (including any representation letter) is intended to 
authenticate such writing and shall be as valid, and have the same force and effect, as a manual 
signature. Any such electronically signed document shall be deemed (i) to be "written" or "in writing," (ii) 
to have been signed and (iii) to constitute a record established and maintained in the ordinary course of 
business and an original written record when printed from electronic files. Each party hereto also agrees 
that electronic delivery of a signature to any such document (via email or otherwise) shall be as effective 
as manual delivery of a manual signature. For purposes hereof, “electronic signature” includes, but is not 
limited to, (i) a scanned copy (as a "pdf" (portable document format) or other replicating image) of a 

38



Executive Committee 
Cape Fear Council of Governments 
May 7, 2019 
Page 8 

manual ink signature, (ii) an electronic copy of a traditional signature affixed to a document, (iii) a 
signature incorporated into a document utilizing touchscreen capabilities or (iv) a digital signature. This 
agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be considered an original 
instrument, but all of which shall be considered one and the same agreement. Paper copies or "printouts,” 
of such documents if introduced as evidence in any judicial, arbitral, mediation or administrative 
proceeding, will be admissible as between the parties to the same extent and under the same conditions 
as other original business records created and maintained in documentary form. Neither party shall 
contest the admissibility of true and accurate copies of electronically signed documents on the basis of 
the best evidence rule or as not satisfying the business records exception to the hearsay rule. 

Please sign and return a copy of this letter to indicate your acknowledgment of, and agreement with, the 
arrangements for our audit of the financial statements, including our respective responsibilities. 

RSM US LLP 

Robert E Bittner III 
Senior Manager 

Confirmed on behalf of Cape Fear Council of Governments: 

Chairman Date 

Executive Officer Date 

Financial Officer Date 

39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47


	3d2. CFCOG LGC Contract 2019_.pdf
	FEES FOR AUDIT SERVICES
	PRIMARY GOVERNMENT FEES
	DPCU FEES (if applicable)




